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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Amos Cook house sits atop a broad knoll, facing east overlooking 
the Yamhill River. The date of its construction is universally attributed 
to 1853, the year Cook married Mary Frances Scott.

Most information about the original appearance of the house comes from 
the Historic American Buildings Survey of 1934. The Cook house is a two- 
story rectangular box with a gable roof of medium pitch. Detailing is 
Classical Revival. The house had a twelve-inch frieze on the front and 
rear sides and a molded cornice with returns at the gable ends. A brick 
interior chimney straddled the ridge at the south end. Four sets of paired 
spaced columns with decorative diagonal crossed bracing between column 
pairs carried a flat or nearly flat porch roof. Fenestration is formal—a 
centered door without transom window or sidelights flanked on either side 
by two windows, with five equally spaced windows over on the second floor. 
All openings are set in simple board architraves, the cornices of which 
butt against the frieze on the second floor. As the exterior walls are 
quite thick, it is possible that the house may have a post and beam frame, 
and there is some speculation that it may even be a log house, though the 
structural system has not been determined. The walls are sided with clap­ 
boards, said in some sources to be cedar shipped around the Horn, though 
this is questionable as there were numerous sawmills in operation at the 
time in Oregon Territory and cedar could be obtained on the West Coast.

There is a kitchen wing on the west or back side of the house. If not 
constructed at the same time as the main block, it is a very early addition. 
The south slope of the gable roof is broken, suggesting that the porch and 
room under the west end of it may be another addition, but the careful 
matching of frieze and cornice details in HABS photos strongly indicate 
that the wing was built this way. At any rate, cornice moldings on the 
wing do not, as clearly as can be seen in the photographs, match those of 
the main block. The pitch of the wing roof is steeper and there are no 
eave returns at the gable end.

Though basically intact, the appearance of the house has greatly 
changed since 1934. The eave returns on the main block have been removed 
and composition shakes now cover the exterior walls of the main block and 
wing. It is thought that the original frieze and siding remain beneath 
them. The porch now has a shed roof and the columnation has been altered— 
some have been replaced with solid posts, the positioning of others has 
been changed, and the decorative crossed diagonals are now missing. The 
interior has also been altered and the brick chimney is now gone. Most 
of the original double-hung sashes containing six lights over six remain, 
though at least one has been replaced with a window of smaller proportions.
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COOK (AMOS) HOUSE CONTINUED

2. Location

The Amos Cook house is located in the NE 1/4 SE 1/4 Sec. 7, T. 4S, 
R. 3W. of the Willamette Meridian, in Yamhill County, Oregon.

6. Representation in Existing Surveys 

Also:

Statewide Inventory of Historic Sites and Buildings
1970
Parks and Recreation Branch
Oregon State Highway Division
Salem, Oregon 97310 Code: 41
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

At the time it was built, the Amos Cook was one of the finest houses 
in the Oregon Territory. Though now greatly changed in surface appearance 
the finely proportioned shell with its commodious windows remains intact, 
and it is thought that most of the elegantly restrained Classical Revival 
detail and clapboard siding remains beneath the present composition siding 
The basic porch framework remains intact, though it is now missing its 
cornice moL^ngs and the columnation has been altered. Enough remains of 
the house that with the aid of the HABS information gathered in the 1930s 
before the house was altered that an accurate restoration could be easily 
made. Though restoration is not contemplated at this time, the house has 
the potential of being one of the finest examples of the Classical Revival 
that flourished in the Willamette Valley in the 1850s.

In addition, Amos Cook has the distinction of being one of the "Peoria 
party" the first true immigrants to Oregon. Amos Cook was born in Washing­ 
ton County, Maine in 1816. As a young man he struck out for the Midwest, 
then considered the Far West, and was in Peoria, Illinois when he heard 
Jason Lee from the Willamette Mission to the Indians in the Oregon Coun­ 
try, which was then considered foreign territory to which the British had 
strongest claim, speak on the virtues of the Willamette Valley in 1838. 
Lee's lecture fired the enthusiasm of a group of young men, 19 of whom de­ 
parted from Peoria in May <bf 1939 with a flag bearing the motto: "Oregon 
or the Grave." Though they took a pledge to be true to their comrades 
and never to desert one another, only eight stuck the trip out arriving 
at Fort Vancouver, a Hudson's Bay Company post, in the spring of 1840.. 
Of these only four, one of whom was Amos Cook, arrived together. He and 
a friend, Francis Fletcher, also of the "Peoria party," took adjacent land 
claims on the Yamhill River. Cook's claim was settled under the Donation 
Land Law in 1852.

Cook is further distinguished as one of the American Party, who by a 
vote of 50-^3 voted to establish a Provisional Government under American 
law at Champoeg in 1843. He was engage&Hn various business enterprises in 
nearby Lafayette and built several buildings there, but farmed his land 
claim after he married Mary Frances Scott in 1853, living in the house un­ 
til he died in 1895.
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